
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (FEBRUARY 27) (Week 9 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held February 27, 2024, 
at 4:15 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
  
4:00 p.m.     1.  Closed Session General Relief Appeal Hearing for T.L. Iowa Code Section {21.5(1)(a)} 
                          First Floor Boardroom  
 

4:15 p.m.     2.  Budget Review Discussion for FY 2025         

                          Medical Examiner’s budget will be discussed at a later date                                                     

                                             
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                  
                     3.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 4 through 9 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    4.  Approval of the minutes of the February 20, 2024 meeting 

 

                    5.  Approval of claims  

 

                    6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                         Approval of resolution for a tax suspension for E.W. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                    7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                   a.  Approve the authorization of a Human Resources Clerk II position 

                   b.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                   c.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

             d.  Approval of request to deauthorize county position 
 
        8.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 
             Approve the permit to work in the right of way for Charles Milligan and to direct the chair to sign  
             the permit    
 
        9.  Receive resignation letter from Deputy Medical Examiner, Dr. Bryce Noll 

 

 End Consent Agenda 

 

                  10.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger & Agape Community Services 

                         Opioid remediation settlement use funding request for Agape Community                Information 

                         Services  

 

                  11.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor 

                         a.  Discussion to extend health insurance to employees and their families                Information 

                              catastrophically injured in the line of duty if necessary and clarifying  

                              secondary roads worker’s inclusion 

                         b.  Information on reconsideration of the present plan for a roundabout and             Information 

                              closure of access to Old Lakeport at the junction of Elk Creek and Christy 

                              Road in Sioux City 

                              

                  12.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                 Information 

    

                  13.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                         Information  

 

                  14.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information     

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                

                                                                                                                                     
MON., FEB. 26      6:00 p.m.     Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
                
TUE.,  FEB. 27      2:00 p.m.     Decat Board Meeting, Western Hills AEA, Room F                                                                
 
WED., FEB. 28      2:30 p.m.     Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., FEB. 29     10:00 a.m.     Siouxland Regional Transit System Special Meeting – Zoom Only 
 
FRI., MAR. 1          9:00 a.m.     Hungry Canyons Alliance - TBD  
                                                                                               
MON., MAR. 4       6:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
WED., MAR. 6     10:00 a.m.     Loess Hill Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa   
 
                             11:00 a.m.     Loess Hill Alliance Executive Meeting 
 
                               1:00 p.m.     Loess Hill Alliance Full Board Meeting 
 
                              4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.    
 
THU., MAR. 7      12:00 p.m.     Regional Policy and Legislative Affairs Committee - Hybrid 
 
WED., MAR. 13     7:30 a.m.     SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee - Hybrid   
 
                              8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            11:00 a.m.      Western Iowa Tourism Region - Zoom 
 
                            12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
 
                               6:30 p.m.     911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                          
 
THU., MAR. 14    12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Dr. 
                              
                              4:00 p.m.     Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 
FRI., MAR. 16      12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 
 
WED., MAR. 20   12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 

                              1:00 p.m.     Regional Workforce Development Meeting, 2508 4th Street, Sioux City 
 
THU., MAR. 21   10:00 a.m.     StarComm, Security Institute, WIT 
 
                              4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue                                                                                       
                           
MON., MAR. 25    6:00 p.m.     Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom              
                                                              
WED., MAR. 27    2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., MAR. 28   11:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122 Pierce St. 
 
 
 
 
                                 
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     







FEBRUARY 20, 2024, EIGHTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 3:30 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, 
Bittinger II, Radig, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, Dennis Butler, Budget and Finance Director, and 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
1a2. Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to receive the Board of Supervisors WCICC budget as submitted.  Carried 5-0. 
 
1a1. Motion by Taylor second by Radig to receive the Board of Supervisors Medical Examiner budget as submitted.  

Carried 5-0. 
 
1b1. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to receive the Juvenile Detention Facility budget as submitted.  Carried 5-0. 
 
1b2. Motion by Taylor second by Radig  to receive the Juvenile Detention Federal Food Program budget as submitted.  

Carried 5-0. 
 
1c1. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the additional $200,000 for the line item 0002-01-9200-000-46000 

funded by revenues over expenditures for FY25 and cash reserves.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
1c2. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve allocations from unobligated Gaming revenues to Debt Service 

Fund for FY25, allocate $250,000 from unobligated L.O.S.T. revenues to Debt Service Fund for FY25, and allocate 
$872,310 from the General Basic Fund to the Debt Service Fund to FY25.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
1c3. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve to increase tax revenues in General Supplemental Fund which will 

balance the fund and result in a flat tax rate in the General Fund.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to receive budget update from Budget Director Butler. Carried 5-0. Copy 

filed. 
 
1c4a. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve to use the unobligated CIP Funds on hand ($205,398) towards funding 

the Bearcat Crawler for the Sheriff’s office.  Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
1c4b. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve to use the unspent ARPA Funds leftover from the Sheriff’s Tasers and 

Radio Project ($110,000) towards funding the Bearcat Crawler for the Sheriff’s office.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
1c4c. No action was taken to use MRHD Grand and donations ($69,602) towards funding the Bearcat Crawler for the 

Sheriff’s office.   
 
1d. There was no review all funds. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
2.  Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the agenda for February 20, 2024.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 

 
3.  To approve minutes of the February 13, 2024 meeting.  Copy filed.    
  
4.  To approve the claims totaling $541,849.64.  Copy filed. 
 
5a. To approve the appointment of Adam Alfredson, P/T Youth Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 2-22-24, 

$21.41/hour. Job Vacancy Posted 10-16-23.  Entry Level Salary:  $21.41/hour.; the reclassification of Haley 
Messerschmidt, Assistant County Attorney, County Attorney Dept., effective 3-04-24, $102,613/year, 
8%=$7,289/year.  Per AFSCME Assistant Co. Attorney Contract agreement, from Step 6 to Step 7.; and the 
reclassification of Devan Amick, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 03-04-24, $25.95/hour, 
4%=$1.00/hour.  Per CWA Civilian Officers Contract agreement, from Class 2 to Class 1. Copy filed. 



February 20, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 
5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for (3) Temporary 

Engineering Aids, Secondary Roads Dept.  Wage Plan:  $15.00-18.50/hour.; and (5) Temporary Summer Laborers, 
Secondary Roads Dept.  Wage Plan:  $14.00-$16.00/hour.  Copy filed. 

 
5c. To approve the wage reopener agreement for FT25 with the Communications Workers of America, AFL-CIO Civilian 

Officers’ CWA 7177.  Copy filed. 
 
6. To approve the appointment of Michael List to the Siouxland District Board of Health.  Copy filed. 
 
7. To receive the County Recorder’s Report of Fees Collected for the period October 1, 2023 through December 31, 

2023.  Copy filed. 
 
8. To receive the Treasurer’s semiannual report for the period ending December 31, 2023.  Copy filed. 
 
9.  To approve the letter submitted by the state medical examiner’s office for the training from 2023.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
10. The letter from the Woodbury County Medical Examiner rescinding resignation notice was noted.  Copy filed. 
 
11. Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to approve a 4% increase to the biweekly rate of the Veteran’s Services 

Director effective pay date 3-8-2024.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
12. Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to receive for signatures a Resolution approving the City of Sioux City’s FY 2024 

request to the Iowa Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration to revise the Federal 
Functional Classification Map.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF SIOUX CITY’S FY 2024 REQUEST 
TO THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND THE FEDERAL 

HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION TO REVISE THE FEDERAL FUNCTIONAL 
CLASSIFICATION MAP 
RESOLUTION #13,702 

 
WHEREAS, Federal Functional Classification is the process by which streets and highways are 
grouped into classes according to the character of service they are intended to provide; and 
 
WHEREAS, these Classifications include Interstate, Other Principal Arterial, Minor Arterial, 
Collector, and Local streets; and 
 
WHEREAS, Woodbury County and the City of Sioux City periodically reviews the system of streets and highways for 
ppropriate changes to classification of the various segments of the system; and 
 
WHEREAS, a recent review of the system has revealed the need for a change to the Federal 
Functional Classification Map of road segments due to changes in traffic flow and existing and 
planned roadway infrastructure in Sioux City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURYCOUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, that Woodbury 
County hereby requests the Iowa Department of Transportation to request the Federal Highway Administration to 
make the following changes to the Federal Functional Classification Map: 
 

Map 
Number Street From To 

Street 
Length 

Current 
Classification 

New 
Classification 

Woodbury County 

51 Glen Ellen Road 
Whispering Creek 

Drive Gordon Drive 1730 N/A Collector 



February 20, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 Dated this 20th day of February, 2024.  

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
13a. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to table the action to de-obligate $150,000 from Building Services budget in 

support of the LEC Authority Maintenance for FY25.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
13.b. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to table the action to reallocate $150,000 to the new County Courthouse Long-

Term CIP Fund.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
14. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
15. Daniel Hair, Hornick, updated the board regarding MidAmerican and windfarms.  
 
 Kevin Nelson, Salix Mayor, addressed the board regarding the Salix drainage district.   
 
16. Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until February 27, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 

52 Buchanan Avenue Gordon Drive Correctionville Road 7500 Local Collector 

53 155th Street Buchanan Avenue Stone Avenue 6050 Local Collector 



Document3 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:              Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:  Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant 
 
RE:  Consideration of a Petition for a Tax Suspension 
 
DATE:  February 22, 2024 
 
 
Please consider this request for a tax suspension for E.W.   If the Board approves this request, the 
suspension resolution requires the chairman’s signature. 
 
 
Thank you. 
 
kmj 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

02/23/2024 02/27/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

Approve the authorization of a Human Resources Clerk II position

 This request is to authorize a Clerk II position for the Human Resources department. 

This position was previously a Senior Clerk and is now transitioning to a Clerk II. As part of a reorganization 
the responsibilities in this position are changing.  

For the remainder of FY24, this will be a savings of approximately $1,384.00 (wage only).

Approve the motion

Motion to approve the authorization of a Human Resources Clerk II position



















WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  











































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM{S) REQUEST FORM 

Date: 2-22-24 Weekly Agenda Date: 2-27-24

ELECTED OFFICIAL/ DEPARTMENT HEAD/ CITIZEN: Supervisor Taylor 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM: 

�pproval of Policy to Allow the Board of Supervisors to Extend Health Insurance to Employees and 
lheir Families Catastrophically Injured in the Line of Duty if Necessary and Clarifying Secondary 
Roads Workers' Inclusion

Approve Ordinance D 

Public Hearing D 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

Approve Resolution � 

Other: Informational D 

Approve Motion � 

Attachments D 

Nearly two years ago, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors became a leader in support of employees who engage in work 
that is often dangerous from jailers and courthouse security personnel to deputies, juvenile detention, and first responders. 

The following proposal extends from the original extension of insurance benefits that the Board of Supervisors extends to fallen 
heroes (those who give their life in the line of duty). This item clarifies that Secondary Roads employees are included. This is a 
result of having the BOS/county engineer highlight that those clearing snow sometimes do so under treacherous conditions and in 
some cases, their doing so is the only avenue for law enforcement or emergency responders to be able to reach our citizens.

Bottom line up front: should a secondary roads worker be catastrophically injured in the line of duty, the Board of Supervisors can 
extend health insurance coverage to employees who will retain the current level of coverage. The premium will be paid by the 
county until the employee secures other health coverage through virtue of other employment, election of spousal coverage, the 
paid-for-coverage by a legal settlement, or by reaching the age of 65. 

BACKGROUND: 

rThis coverage seeks to fix the problem that is inherent in an employee by virtue of performing his or her duties becomes injured 
and is no longer able to be employed. To no longer employ that person is no one's choice but becoming injured in harm's way 
should be commended not punished. The following clarification will help: 

-Woodbury County will pay the premium that otherwise would have been paid by the employee.

-The insurance benefit will only be paid at the current level when the catastrophic injury occured, e.g. single coverage can be
extended or family coverage can be extended but not changed after the date of a line-of-duty injury.

-This policy recognizes the understandable and laudable work of law enforcement and first responders but is not limited to any one
group per se and will cover, for example, the law enforcement deputy, jailer, courthouse security officer, juvenile detention
employee, conservation officer, or motor grader--as long as the injury can be verified by the county's designated physician to be a
direct result of catastrophic causation.

-The employee must file a written statement detailing the circumstances of injury and any witness statements and be certified by an
accompanying physician report.

-Such insurance benefit may only be paid by the county up until the age of 65 and will not be retained when insurance is offered
(and denied) by another employer should the employee become gainfully employed, nor when elected to be put on a spouse's
insurance plan.



FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Should be rare and have little financial impact overall. 

RESOLUTION NO: 

WHEREAS Woodbury County employs approximately 400 employees and values each and every one of them; 

WHEREAS county employees often engage in public safety, law enforcement, emergency services, on county roads during 
hazardous situations, and may become injured due to acting in the "line of duty", and 

WHEREAS health insurance is a benefit extended by virtue of employment and a "line of duty" catastrophic injury is an event that 
may necessitate a medical discharge from otherwise being able to fulfil employment, and 

WHEREAS the Board of Supervisors upon receiving the filing of an employee to include a written statement detailing the 
circumstances of injury and any witnesses accompanied by a medical examination at the choice of the county's designated 
physician when a "line of duty" injury is found to be the direct causation of performing in the line of duty; 

WHEREAS upon receiving such certification the county subject to the approval of the Board of Supervisors will pay both the 
premium and cost of coverage at the current level of insurance that the employee retained upon the date of the line-of-duty injury, 
and 

WHEREAS such insurance benefit may only be paid by the county up until the age of 65 and will not be retained when insurance is 
offered (and denied) by another employer should the employee become gainfully employed, nor when the former employee elects 
o be put on a spouse's insurance plan,

Now be it resolved on this day of the month of , 2022 that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby passes 
such a policy to protect its valued employees and recognize the service that they perform in the line of duty. 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE? 

Yes □ No □ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Ensure that the policy of the Board of Supervisors extending health insurance coverage with the policy 
points and procedures as described here contain the certain provisions for secondary roads workers 
and if not that the BOS takes action to amend policy to match the above resolution and communicate 
this safeguard with our appreciation to each secondary roads worker.

ACTION REQUIRED/ PROPOSED MOTION: 

Ensure that the policy of the Board of Supervisors extending health insurance coverage with the policy 
points and procedures as described here contain the certain provisions for secondary roads workers 
and if not that the BOS takes action to amend policy to match the above resolution and communicate 
this safeguard with our appreciation to each secondary roads worker.

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

2/22/2024 2/27/2024

Supervisor J.Taylor

On February 22, a public information meeting was held at Morningside Assembly of God Church. More than 30 residents attended. 
Many of them shared concerns with me as the representative from the Board of Supervisors and Alex Watters (the lone City of 
Sioux Council member). With appreciation, County Engineer Mark Nahra stayed until 6 p.m. along with his City of Sioux City 
Engineer counterpart Gordon Phair and staff from DGR. 
 
The Board of Supervisors should give direction for the county engineer to study all viable options for the 19 homes without vehicle 
access for the 2-3 months during construction. This was far and away the greatest source of contention to include concerns shared 
below.  
 
The project intent originally addressed several needs: paving to new development that typically does not abut to an old intersection 
where the city plans to do utility work; 10-15 year future projections of increased traffic from such increased development; the 
difficult issue of egressing from the dead-end section of Old Lakeport onto Christy Road especially turning left. 

The greatest amount of feedback that I heard was with those concerned about access to include parking vehicles and vandalism, 
elderly/infirm people carrying groceries or driving back and forth from residents to a parking lot across the street in a golf cart; 
groceries; package deliveries; trash pick up; weather damage from normally garaged vehicles; child-seat laws or larger families 
normally in a mini-van; safety and security at night. The prospect of this for 2-3 months made people overwhelmingly share 
opposition to the project.  
 
-This is an irony because the project was sold in no small part on the inability of those folks to egress from the dead-end portion of 
Old Lakeport onto Christy Road. I spoke to 7 households that night with a promise of hearing from more in the future. When 
residents asked why access couldn't be given over a certain path, the design team answered how one leech field could not be 
traversed without ruining a homeowner's septic system. Many shared that the increased signage has helped mitigate the turning 
issues from Old Lakeport and that given the lack of access during a shutdown, they would rather things stayed the same the way 
they are. 
 
My greatest heartburn came from a resident who said that this project was going to be done no matter how much public input was 
given, so what was the point of elected officials being there. I assured her that though I'm one person, our Board takes citizens' 
concerns very seriously and is responsive as I believe both our elected bodies are. 
 
I wanted to see if the engineers could be sent back to the drawing board regarding access-and I'm understanding there may be a 
possibility of an alternative after all. I would also like to see if project opposition was the case if the neighborhood access issue was 
solved (it seemed that opposition went down by at least some homeowners). 
 
At the very least, it seems wise to "tap the brakes" and seek public input exploring all possible avenues. Similarly to what happened 
when we actually came to the hearing for a newly proposed drainage district (when things become soon-to-be reality with "real 
world" implications) then people voice their concerns the most specifically and passionately. I also believe that public notice should 
be sent informing affected landowners of any upcoming agenda item. As much as we believe people will follow our Board agenda, 
when projects affect them this specifically, it is a courtesy that can go a long way.

Information on Reconsideration of the Present Plan for a Roundabout and Closure of Access to Old 
Lakeport at the Juncture of Elk Creek and Christy Road in Sioux City

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Receive the information, hold a public agenda item on 3-5-2024 and consider the following: 
 
Completing only the paving portion of Elk Creek Road as a standalone project. 
Completing the roundabout project additionally upon alternative access/egress from residents' homes. 
Alternatively completing an alternate access route long-term from the dead-end portion of Old Lakeport.

Receive the information, hold a public agenda item on 3-5-2024 and consider the following: 
 
Completing only the paving portion of Elk Creek Road as a standalone project. 
Completing the roundabout project additionally upon alternative access/egress from residents' homes. 
Alternatively completing an alternate access route long-term from the dead-end portion of Old Lakeport.



          Date: 2/23/2024 

Discussion items for Elk Creek Road Project: 

Project Scope    Length 0.42 miles 

Elk Creek Road Grading and Paving plus intersection 
reconstruction 

Project connects the Elk Creek Road pavement by the Residences at Elk Creek subdivision to the 
intersection of Christy Road/Old Lakeport Road/Southern Hills Road and Elk Creek Road.  Cost 
share between the city and county is approximately 50-50 for the project.  Project is undertaken 
under the terms of a letter of agreement between the Sioux City Council and the Woodbury County 
Board of Supervisors.  Both governmental bodies approved development of the project. 

Preliminary Total Project Cost estimate:     $1,709,086 

Breakout Stage Cost: Stage 1- Elk Creek Grade and Pave: $    787,323 

   Stage 2- Intersection reconstruction: $    930,763 

This is not a $2 million roundabout project.  Reconstruction of the intersection is only part of the 
project (~55% of total project cost).  Whether a roundabout design is built or a standard four-way 
intersection is reconstructed, the intersection work will take approximately the same amount of 
time.   The consultant is providing a diagram showing the footprint of the existing intersection on top 
of the roundabout for presentation at the Board meeting on February 27th.   The existing footprint of 
intersection shows that the roundabout is only slightly larger but allows all five legs of the 
intersection to be accommodated within roughly the same footprint as the original intersection 
design and will smoothly allow all traffic to be accommodated.    

Current condition:   -  Gravel Road on Elk Creek Road alignment east of the intersection.   

 Intersection pavement is a PCC Pavement constructed in 1989.   
Pavement age is 35 years. 

Proposed improvement: Elk Creek Road - grading and 24-foot-wide PCC Paving with 6’ 
Granular Shoulders 

Intersection to be reconstructed with PCC.   Reconstructing the 
intersection consists of changing intersection from current two-lane 
intersection E-W and N-S with fifth intersection leg 40 feet +/-  NW of 
the intersection with a roundabout bringing all five streets into a 
single intersection.  Sidewalks, utility improvements, and storm 
sewer improvements are also included in the project. 

The intersecting leg from the NW is a dead end portion of Old Lakeport Road serving 18 residences.   
Currently the dead-end road outlets to Christy Road approximately 40’ north of four way 
intersection.  As traffic has grown in the area following the construction of new medical offices and 
commercial development, at least three residents have complained to county engineer about 
difficulty entering traffic on Christy Road and reported that the intersection is sometimes blocked 
by traffic backed up at the southbound stop sign.  The county added a “Do Not Block Intersection” 
sign several years ago.   Reported results are mixed on the effectiveness of this sign.   



Project construction details: The project is divided into two stages.   The first stage is grading and 
paving of Elk Creek Road.  The start date is mid-May for this work.  
While the Elk Creek Road is underway, utilities will be relocated at 
the intersection.   Once utilities are relocated, the reconstruction at 
the intersection will begin.   

Project goals:    

1) Grade and pave Elk Creek Road to improve the roadway for use by area residents and 
encourage additional development in the area.   

2) Provide access to the intersection for residents on the dead-end road that is equal to 
access of the other four legs of the intersection so that the residents of this street can safely 
enter traffic in the intersection. 

While not all residents on the dead end seem to agree on the whether access to Christy Road is a 
problem at the current intersections, based on comments I received at Thursday night’s meeting 
much of their frustration with the project and the proposed intersection reconstruction was due to 
the loss of access to drive home to their respective residences during the project.  The 
inconvenience of parking in the church parking lot and walking or using provided golf carts while the 
intersection construction underway was deemed to be unacceptable by residents on the dead end.  
Any improved access to the intersection provided by the roundabout was not deemed worth the 
temporary inconvenience. 

The original plan for access for residents on the dead end had been to construct a temporary road 
through an easement across the Agnes property to Southern Hills Drive west of the intersection 
closure.   This was found to be impractical due to this easement area being on top of the leaching 
field for the Agnes’ septic system.   A temporary access road would have damaged the septic 
system leaching field. 

The alternative access accommodation proposed at the meeting was to put a wood chip surfaced 
walking trail/golf cart path across the Agnes easement.   This type of traffic would not damage the 
septic leaching field, but would provide access.  Parking spots would be leased from the church 
across the street.   This alternative was not deemed adequate by residents who commented at the 
meeting.   Golf carts have been used on other county projects when paving disrupts access to 
homes in a project corridor.  Sioux City’s normal policy is to require residents to walk home during 
street construction. 

In the course of the meeting, it was learned that the residence across from the Agnes property had 
changed hands and that an easement might be able to be obtained from the new owner.   City staff 
is pursuing this option over the course of the next week and the county engineer will report on the 
feasibility of this option on March 5.    It is hoped that if continuous construction access to homes is 
provided, the residents’ objections to the project will be addressed.  

Emergency vehicle access and garbage pickup access concerns have been addressed by 
engineering staff working with Sergeant Bluff fire and rescue and requiring the contractor to assist 
with the collection of garbage.  Delivery of mail and packages is also a concern.  Mailboxes are 
typically relocated during construction.  Package delivery concerns will be addressed with the 
contractor.  Most of these issues should be addressed if a temporary road can be built off Christy 
Road as is being worked on by city staff. 



NEXT STEPS: 

Tabling the project could jeopardize completion of all work prior to the winter of 2024.   The current 
project timetable with work beginning in May should ensure completion in one construction 
season. 

At this point, I recommend that the Board allow the consultant and city and county engineering 
staff to address the concerns expressed at the meeting.   Most of the residents’ objections can be 
addressed.   It is too early to pull the plug on the project. 

Traffic will continue to grow at this intersection as development continues in the area.  If the 
replacement of the intersection pavement is not done now, greater disruption to higher volumes of 
traffic will be incurred 5, 10, or 15 years from now and the access problems for the residents on the 
NW leg of Old Lakeport Road will only grow.   Regardless of when the work is done, this year, or in 10 
years, some inconvenience for these residents will occur.  By delaying intersection construction 
today, we only kick the can down the road.   The board has done this on other projects, such as 
220th Street.  Not only will the work be no less disruptive to these peoples’ lives in the future, but it 
will be more costly to the city and county as construction costs will only continue to grow. 


	Date: 02/22/2024
	Weekly Agenda Date: 02/27/2024
	ELECTED OFFICIAL  DEPARTMENT HEAD  CITIZEN: Supervisor  Bittinger/ ACS
	Text20: Agape Community Services(ACS) is opening an evidence-based, faith-based, cognitive behavior therapy, long term inpatient & outpatient substance abuse treatment center in Sioux City. 
	Text21: Agape Community Servives is a collabration of local churches in Siouxland with the mission of empowering individuals on their journey to recovery by providing compassionate, personalized & evidence-based care which fosters healing, resiliency & hope within a supportive community enviroment. We are currently in negotiations with Sioux City and have a Letter of Understanding to purchase the 38.8 acres of land, to the west of the new Woodbury County LEC, to build our treatment center. 


See backup materials for the site overview.
	Text25: Opioid Remediation Settlement Use Funding Request for Agape Community Services(ACS)
	CheckBox26: Off
	CheckBox27: Off
	CheckBox29: Off
	CheckBox30: Yes
	CheckBox31: Off
	CheckBox32: Yes
	No: Off
	ChkBox5: Off
	Text22: Agape Community Services seeks a fudning request of $150,000 from the Opoid Remediation Settlement Fund to fund hiring an Executive Director for the purpose of obtaining necessary licenses, grant resources, networking and creating the infastructure for opening a substance abuse treament center. The request for $150,000 would also cover part of the service expenses with CMBA Architects & McClure Engineering for the site development of the 38.8 acres of land. 

See backup materials for breakdown of funding needs, building & site drawings and Executive Director postion description. 
	Text23: Informational Only 
	Text24: Informational Only


